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Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To: The Shareholders of Orascom Financial Holding (S.A.E)

Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orascom Financial Holding (S.A.E)
and its subsidiaries “the Group” which comprise the consolidated statement of financial positions as of
December 31, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for the period from the date of incorporation on December 10, 2020 till December 31,
2021, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company's management. Management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Egyptian Accounting Standards and applicable Egyptian laws, management responsibility includes,
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
management responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in the light of the prevailing
Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumsiances, bui not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeciiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.



Translation of audit report
m originally issued in Arabic

Hazem Hassan

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Orascom Financial Holding S.A.E. as of December 31, 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the financial period from
the date of incorporation on December 10, 2020 till December 31, 2021, in accordance with the Egyptian
Accounting Standards and the Egyptian laws and regulations relating to the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

Explanatory Paragraph

As explained in detail in note no. (1-C), Orascom Financial Holding S.A.E. was incorporated as a result of the
demerger from Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E, where the balances of December 31, 2019, were taken as
a basis for the demerger after making the proposed amendments made by the General Authority for Investment
to those book values.

e

KPMG Hazem Hassan
Public Accountants and Consultants

Cairo, March 16, 2022
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Translation of financial statements

Orascom Financial Holding "S.A.E."
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of

originally issued in Arabic

Note no. December 31, 2021
(In thousands of EGP)
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets (5) 374,911
Fixed assets (6) 162,624
Equity accounted investees (7) 1,848,139
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (8) 42,718
Other assets (9) 7,469
Trade receivables (11) 260,471
Total non-current assets 2,696,332
Current assets
Trade receivables (11) 507,690
Other assets (9) 15,848
Due from related parties (12-2) 14
Due from companies working in securities 60
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (13) 34,354
Cash and cash equivalents (14) 1,190,879
Total current assets 1,748,845
Total assets 4,445177
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued and paid-up capital (15) 1,626,165
Reserves 477,444
Retained earnings 541,773
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 2,645,382
Non-controlling interests 138,217
Total equity 2,783,599
Labilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities (18) 15,943
Credit facilities (17) 381,616
Deferred tax liabilities (10) 29,392
Total non-current liabilities 426,951
Current liabilities
Credit facilities (17) 619,169
Due to related parties (12-3) 1,584
Customers - credit balances (19) 463,020
Provisions (20) 33,744
Current income tax liabilities 16,160
Lease liabilities (18) 4,937
Other liabilities (21) 96,013
Total current liabilities 1,234,627
Total liabilities 1,661,578
Total equity and liabilities 4,445177

* The accompanying notes from (1) to (32) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements and to be

Auditor's report "attached"

Chlef Financial Offlc/ey//é

Managing Member of the Board
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Orascom Financial Holding Company "S.A.E."

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Consolidated Statement of Income for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Financial period from the

{In thousands of EGP) Note no.  date of incorporation till
December 31, 2021
Fees and commissions income (22} 170,167
Interest income (23} 182,233
Total operating revenues 362,400
Share of profit of equity accounted investees (7) 120,679
Dividends income-bends 9,385
Other income 4,375
Revaluation of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,415
Provisions no-longer required (20} 22,823
Gains from sale of fixed assets 1,021
Total income 522,098
Wages, salaries and equivalents (210,938)
Incorpeoration expenses and subscriptions (7.950)
Other operating expenses (24} (88,207)
Amortization of intangible assets 5 {5,155)
Depreciation of fixed assets and right of use assets (8) {14,736)
Provisions formed (20) {10,649)
Expected credit loss (1) (169,554}
Impairment loss of other assets (103)
Impairment loss of goodwill {1,039)
Net differences from foreign currencies translation 321
Interest expenses (23) (92,642)
Net (loss) for the period hefore income tax (78,554)
Income tax expense (25) (23,556)
Net (loss) for the period {102,110)
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company (23,734)
Non-controlling interests (78,376)
Net (loss) for the period (102,110)
Basic and diluted (losses) per share (26) {0.0045)

* The accompanying notes from (1) to (32) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements and to be read therewith.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding "S.A.E."
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period from the date of incorporation till

Financial period

(In thousands of EGP) from the date of

December 31, 2021
Net (loss) for the period (102,110)
Items of other comprehensive (loss)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of income:
Foreign currency translation differences of foreign subsidiaries 7
Items will not be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of income:
Revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (1,316)
Total other comprehensive (loss) for the period, net of tax (1,309)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the period {103,419)
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company (25,232)
Non-controlling interests (78.187)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the period {103,419)

CooOooocogagddad

™ | he accompanying notes from (1) to (32) are an integral part ot the consolidated tinancial statements and to be read
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding "S.A.E."

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

(In thousands of EGP)

Financial period from the

Note  date of incorporation {ill

no. December 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Net (loss) for the period before income tax (78,554)
Adjustments for:
Amortization of intangible assets (5) 5,155
Depreciation of fixed assets and rights of use assets (6) 14,736
Credit interest from banks (23,240)
Interest income from customers balances (16,426)
Interest expenses on credit facilities (23) 92,642
Share of profit of equity accounted investees (7) (120,679)
Dividends income-bonds (9,385)
Expected credit losses (11) 169,554
Impairment loss of other assets 103
Impairment loss of goodwill 1,039
(Gains) from sale of fixed assets (1,021)
Revaluation of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (1,415)
Net differences from foreign currencies translation (321)

32,188
Net change in:
Trade receivables (219,062)
Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss 17,943
Due from related parties 66,050
Due from companies working in securities 409
Other assets (4,967)
Other liabilities 20,085
Customers - credit balances 245,161
Due to related parties 26,223
Provisions (20) (19,518)
Cash flows generated from operating activities 164,512
Dividends received from equity accounted investees 35,623
Credit interest received 23,515
Proceeds from interest income from customers balances 16,426
Interest expenses paid (78,035)
Income tax paid (20,086)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 141,955
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of fixed assets (17,992)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 2,002
Dividends received-Bonds 9,385
Payments for purchase of investments in subsidiaries (3,750)
Payment for investment at FVOCI (6,774)
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (17,129)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments for lease liabilities (6,200)
Proceeds from non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 7,550
Payment for interest on current loans (1,437)
Proceeds from sale of investments in subsidiaries without change in control 216,272
Net proceeds from credit facilities and interests paid 513,399
Net cash flows generated by financing activities 729,584
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the period 854,410
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash and cash equivalents in foreign currencies (93)
Cash and cash equivalents resulted from the demerger 336,562
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (14) 1,190,879

* The accompanying notes from (1) to (32) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements and to be read
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “SAE”
Notes for consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

1-

General information

A- Legal status

Orascom Financial Holding S.A.E. Which will be mentioned later as the demerged company or
"the Company"” is an Egyptian Joint Stock company pursuant to provisions of the capital market law No. 95
of 1992 and its executive regulations. The Company was registered at Cairo Commercial Register No 430755
on December 10, 2020. The Company’s head office is located at Nile City Towers, Ramlet Boulak — Cairo,
Egypt. The Company’s duration is 25 years starting from December 10, 2020.

B- Purpose of the Company

The Company’s purpose is to participate in incorporating companies that issue securities or to increase the share
capital of these companies in relation to the Capital Market Law. The Company may have interest or participate,
by any mean, in companies and other enterprises that have activities similar to those of the Company or those
that may assist the Company to achieve its objectives in Egypt or abroad. It may also merge into those
companies and enterprises or acquire them pursuant to the provisions of the law and its executive regulations.

C- Brief over incorporation of the Company

The Company was established through the demerger from Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.

Based on the decision of the Board of Directors of Orascom Investment Holding held on July 9, 2020, it was
approved to submit a detailed' demerger project to be presented to the extraordinary general assembly of
Orascom Investment Holding, as the project includes demerger of Orascom Investment Holding, into two
companies, company with the same name of Orascom Investment Holding, which includes investments in
companies operating in different fields, and a demerged company to be established called “Orascom Financial
Holding” and includes investments in companies operating in non-banking financial services activities, namely
Beltone Financial Holding (a subsidiary company) and Contact Financial Holding (Previously Sarwa Capital
Holding Company) (an associate company), and the affiliation of Beltone Financial Holding Company and
Sarwa Capital Holding Company for Financial Investments, as well as the current account due to Orascom
Investment Holding Company, is transferred from Victoire Investment Company to the demerged company.

On October 19, 2020, the Extraordinary General Assembly of Orascom Investment Holding, approved the
demerger plan of Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E. according to the horizontal demerger method using the
book value of the share and to use the separate financial statements for the financial year ended
December 31, 2019, as a basis for the demerger where Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.(the demerging
Company) will still exist and its issued capital shall be reduced by reducing the par value of its shares and will
also specialize in performing various investment activities while maintaining its license as a company whose
purpose is “to participate in the establishment of all joint stock companies or to recommend shares that issue
securities or to increase their capital.”. Furthermore, the demerger resulted in the establishment of a new
company in the name of Orascom Financial Holding S.A.E. (the demerged Company) in the form of an
Egyptian joint stock company, subject to the provisions of the Capital Market Law No. 95 of 1992 and its
executive regulations, and its purpose is to “participate in the establishment of companies that issue securities
or increase their capital and that operate in the fields of non-banking financial activities.” The companies
resulting from the demerger shall be owned by the same shareholders of Orascom Investment Holding at the
date of the execution of the demerger having the same ownership percentages for each shareholder before the
execution of the demerger.

The extraordinary general assembly meeting also approved the report issued by the Economic Performance
Authority of the General Authority for Investment and Free Zones issued on September 2, 2020, with the net
equity of the demerged company based on the financial statements as of December 31, 2019, and which
concluded that the book value of the net equity of the demerged company is EGP 2,009,824,600, where it was
agreed that the authorized capital of the demerged company will be EGP 8,130,820,461, and the issued capital
amounted to EGP 1,626,164,092.2, distributed over 5,245,690,620 shares with a nominal value of EGP 0.31
per share.



Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

QOrascom Financial Hoiding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Orascom Financial Holding S.A.E. was established. (the demerged Company) pursuant to the decision of the
Chairman of the Financial Regulatory Authority no. 1453 of 2020, on November 30, 2020, pursuant to the
decision of the Committee for Examination of Applications for the Establishment and Licensing of Companies
Formed in the Authority in its session No. 440 on November 26, 2020, where the approval of the Financial
Regulatory Authority was issued with No. 13821 issued on December 1, 2020, on the issuance of shares of
Orascom Financial Holding (the demerged company) with a capital of EGP 1,626,164,092.2, according to the
evaluation of the committee formed at the General Investment Authority. Moreover, on December 10, 2020,
the company was registered in the commercial registry with No. 430755 Cairo Registry, and its articles of
association were published in the Companies’ listing issued by General Authority for Investments with an
authorized capital of EGP 8,130,820,461.

D- The financial period of the consolidated financial statements

Since the date of incorporation of the Company is the same as the date of registration in the commercial registry,
which is December 10, 2020, these consolidated financial statements are the first financial statements that the
Company issues after the date of incorporation, and therefore it covers the financial period from
December 10, 2020, till December 31, 2021.

2- Basis of preparation of the consolidation financial statements
A- Statement of compliance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards
- The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting
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Standards issued by the Minister of Investment’s decree No. 110 of 2015, and applicable Egyptian laws and
regulations. The Egyptian Accounting Standards require referral to International Financial Reporting Standards
“IFRS” for certain types of transactions or events when no Egyptian Accounting Standard or legal requirement
exists to address treatment for these transactions or events.

The consolidated financial statements for the Company for the period from the date of incorporation till
December 31, 2021, were approved by the board on March 15, 2022.

Basis for preparation of the consolidated financial statements

As disclosed in Note 1-C, the demerged company was established as a result of demerger from Orascom
Investment Holding, the demerging company, where the new legal entity represents a permanent economic entity
starting from the date on which the demerging company acquired or established the subsidiaries and associates
which their ownership was transferred to the demerged company.

The management of the Company considers that the substance of the demerger and establishment of the
Company with the objective of transferring ownership subsidiaries and associates and continuation of its
activities through the new legal entity, is considered a business combination for entities under common control
transaction. The transferred entities pursuant to the demerger plan were under the control of same main
shareholders both before and after the demerger and control is not considered temporary. Therefore, transactions
under common control are out of scope of the Egyptian Accounting Standard (29) and International Accounting
Standard (IFRS 3).

In the absence of a specific guidance in Egyptian Accounting Standards, EAS 5 requires management to develop
and apply an appropriate accounting policy that leads to the provision of appropriate and reliable financial
information, Management used its judgement in developing and applying an accounting policy to account for its
investments in subsidiaries and associates transferred as part of the demerger process. Although the legal
acquisition of subsidiaries was through transfer of shares of equity ownership certificates in application of the
demerge decision which was taken in December 2020, the net assets of the companies that were transferred
through the demerger process were consolidated as a continuing economic entity under the company’s control
from the actual date on which the demerging company has acquired the subsidiaries or incorporated them and
so the statement of changes in equity includes the retained earnings of these entities during the period from
controlling or incorporating these companies by the demerging company.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

C- Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial Instruments
which are stated at fair value which represents in;
-Financial derivatives.
-Financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss.
-Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and
-Financial instruments measured at amortized cost.

D- Presentation currency
The Group’s functional and presentation currency is the Egyptian Pound “EGP”. All the financial information
presented in Egyptian pound has been rounded to the nearest EGP thousand, except for earnings per share, unless
otherwise indicated in the consolidated financial statements or in the notes.

3- Significant accounting policies
3-1 consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of the parent company and
companied controlled by the company (its Subsidiaries) as of the financial position date. Control is achieved

where the Group has the following:
- Power over the investee.
- Exposure or right to variable retumns through its contribution to the investee.
- The ability to use his authority over the investee in order to influence the amount of proceeds he receives from
it. :
The parent company should reassess the control of the investee if the facts and circumstances indicate that there
are variables for one or more of the three control elements mentioned above.

The consolidated income statement includes the income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year as of the effective date of acquisition or the effective date of disposal as appropriate. The total
income of the subsidiaries is distributed between the sharcholders of the holding company and the non-
controlling interests even if the negative balance of the non-controlling interests (deficit) arises.

The necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of the Group companies whenever necessary,
making their accounting policies consistent with the accounting policies applicable to other group companies.

All transactions, balances, income and expenses between the Group companies are eliminated on
consolidation of the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
When the Group loses its ultimate or joint control of a subsidiary or joint venture and instead retains significant
influence over it, it recognizes the remaining investment as an investment in an associate and measures it at its
fair value at the date that the ultimate or joint control was lost. The fair value of the remaining investment at the
date on which the joint or absolute control is lost is considered a cost on initial recognition of the investment in
an associate.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-2 Business combination

Business combinations (acquisitions) are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination transaction is measured at fair value, which is calculated on the basis of
the total fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred from the Group and the liabilities incurred by
the Group in favour of the former owners of the acquiree as well as the equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.

Goodwill is measured on the basis that it represents an increase in (1) Total: the consideration transferred, and
any rights to the owners of non-controlling interests in the acquired entity, and the fair value of the share, which
the company acquired owned in the company's ownership rights acquired before the acquisition date (if any) for
(2) Net values: Assets acquired, and liabilities incurred at the date of acquisition. If, after reassessment shows
that the net acquired assets by the values and obligations incurred over the total: the consideration transferred,
and any rights to the owners of non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and the fair value of the acquirers
share in the acquired company’s owners’ equity before the date of acquisition (if any) then the increase would
be recognized in the profit or loss for the period. (bargain purchase).

For non-controlling interests that represent current equity interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the net assets of the entity in liquidation, they may be measured at initial recognition either at fair value
or in the proportionate share of the non-controlling interests in the recognized values of the net assets of the
acquired - The measurement basis for each acquisition transaction is selected separately.

In Group Entities under Common Control, the Group treats the differences between the cost of business
combination and the Group's share in the carrying amount of the net assets and contingent consideration of the
acquired entity as a reserve for the consolidation of a business in equity if the acquisition does not result in
Change in the principle of absolute control of the Group over the enterprises or companies that have been
assembled before and after the acquisition. The same policy is also applied if the Group acquires a proportion of
the non-controlling interests' interest in the subsidiary or the Group dispossesses a percentage of its ownership
in the subsidiary but retains control of the subsidiary.

In this case, the fair value of the net assets and contingent consideration of the acquired entity is not determined
until the date of initial control, taking into account changes in equity items that occurred during the period from
the date of initial control until the date of increasing the control share.

The non-controlling interest in an acquired entity is initially measured at the non-controlling interest
proportionate share in the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liability recognized at acquisition
date.



S

300

L

a0 0

{7
d

{

LU

oo gl

L3 U

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

3-3

Orascom Financial Holding (the parent company) currently holds the following direct interests in its subsidiaries:

Direct and
indirect interest

Entity name Segment Country in entity
DOT technologies and software development Financial services Egypt 79.90 %
Beltone Financial Holding “S.A.E” Financial services ~ Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Investment Funds “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Promotion and Underwriting “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Investments Holding- free zone “S.A.E” Financial services = Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Information Technology “S.A.E” Financial services ~ Egypt 38,15%
Beltone Securities Holding “S.A.E” Financial services =~ Egypt 38,15%
Beltone Securities Brokerage “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Financial — Emirates Financial services = UAE 38,15%
Beltone Securities Brokerage “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
New Fronteer securities Financial services  USA 58,15%
Beltone Market Maker “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Property “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Mortgage “S.A.E” Financial services  Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Leasing “S.A.E” Financial services ~ Egypt 58,15%
Beltone Consumer finance “S.A.E” Financial services ~ Egypt 58,15%
Beltone for Venture Capital Financial services  Egypt 58,15%

Equity accounted investees

Equity accounted investees consist of shares in associates and joint ventures. It has no rights to the assets and
obligations associated with the arrangement.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.

The business results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Investments classified as held for sale, are accounted for in accordance with
EAS 32 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, where they are stated at the lower of
their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in' the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate,
less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate) are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate company.

10
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-4

On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is accounted for in
accordance with EAS 29 Business Combination, Therefore:

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and is
instead recognized immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the group’s share of the associate’s
profit or loss in the period in which the investment was acquired.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate. Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case appropriate provision is made for impairment for that asset.

The following table provides a list of the Group’s associates:
Direct and indirect

Company Name Segment Country interest in enti
Contact Financial Holding Financial services Egypt 29.79 %

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into the respective functional currencies of Group companies
at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the date of preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Assets & Liabilities that are measured using the fair value are translated in foreign currency using the exchange
rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are generally recognized in
profit or loss. However, exchange differences arising from the translation of the following items are recognized
in OCI:

- investments in equity instruments (except for impairment, in which case foreign currency differences that have

been recognized in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss);

- a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the extent that the

hedge is effective.
Qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

" » Assets and liabilities in the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated at the rate of exchange at

the reporting date.

* Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate during the financial year.

» Equity items are translated at the historical exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

» The resulting currency differences are recognized in the translation reserve of foreign entities in equity.

* For the purpose of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are
translated at the average exchange rate during the financial period.

11
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021
[ 3-5 Discontinued operations

) Discontinued operations are part of the Group operations, their operations and cash flows can be isolated from
operations of other groups.

,,,,, J A discontinued operation is recognized as such when it is discontinued or when it is converted into an asset held
for sale, whichever happens first.

After an operation is labelled as discontinued, it is removed from the income statement and the OCI and presented
[ as if it had been removed from the beginning of the reporting period.

3-6 Financial instruments

The cumulative effect of applying the EAS No.47 was recognized on January 1, 2020 before the demerging
process on January 1, 2021, before the demerger.

A
i

Starting from January 1, 2020, EAS No. (47), substantially changed accounting and financial reporting in three
key areas: classification and measurement of financial assets, impairment and hedge accounting.

3.6.1 Business model, classification and measurement
Business Model

- The Group determines the nature of the business model by considering the way in which the financial assets are
managed to achieve the business objective as determined by management.

- On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as measured at:

amortized cost (“AC”);

o fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™); or

o fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

- Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

- A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it meets the following conditions:

e it is held within a business model that has an objective to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset result in cash flows at specified date that are solely payments of

oo a ) d

- principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI”).

. - A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

] e it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

L] ¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset result in cash flows that are SPPI,

- On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. ' ' '

- All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Business model assessment

The Group assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
flaws or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

How managers of the business are compensated ~ e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers:

Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

Prepayment and extension features; and

Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment
at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion
if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

13
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses from changes in fair value, including any interest or

Financial assets at FYTPL L. . L.
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by

. . . impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
Financial assets at amortised cost . . o ]

losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain

or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
Debt investments at FYOCI profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI

are reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the

Equity investments at FVOCI dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition
e Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantiaily all
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognized.

14
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scom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”

es to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3.6.2

« Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or contingent liability ) is recognized in profit or
loss.

Impairment

As allowed by EAS No. (47), the Group applies two impairment models for financial assets measured at
amortized cost and FVOCI:

the simplified approach model for trade receivables related to fees and commission under the scope of EAS
No. (48) “Revenues from Contracts with Customers™; and

the general approach model for Brokerage customers and other financial assets, including financial assets
under the scope of EAS No. (47).

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement within the credit
losses expenses.

3.6.2.1 Simplified approach model

With regards to trade receivables related to fees and commission, the simplified approach model for
determining the impairment is performed in two steps:

- any trade receivable in default is individually assessed for impairment; and

- a general reserve is recognized for all other trade receivables (including those not past due) based on the

determined historical loss rates and carryforward losses expectations.

3.6.2.2 General approach model

- The general model impairment requirements of EAS No. (47) apply to all credit exposures that are measured

at amortized cost or FVOCI, except the cases covered by simplified model as abovementioned.

For purposes of the impairment policy below, these instruments are referred to as (“Financial Assets™).

The determination of impairment losses and allowance moves from an incurred credit loss model whereby
credit losses are recognized when a defined loss event occurs under previous accounting standard, to an
expected credit loss model under EAS No. (47), where allowances are taken upon initial recognition of the
Financial Asset, based on expectations of potential credit losses at the time of initial recognition.

The Group uses three main components to measure ECL. These are Probability of Default (“PD”), Loss Given
Default (“LGD”) and Exposure at Default (“EAD™).

- The probability of tripping the corresponding parties is derived from internal group assessments. The Group

allocates the probability of default for each exposure of the counterparty based on the economic environment
in which the customer works, considering the relevant quantitative and qualitative information and quality
available.

- Loss estimates when you stumble are independent of the client's probability of default. Loss models when

tripping ensure that the main drivers of losses, including the quality of the warranty, are reflected in the loss
factor when the specified stumble.

- Exposure when its stumbles is defined as the expected amount of credit risk to the counterparty at the time of

its stumble. The exposure model is designed when you default on the life of the financial asset considering the
expected payment files.
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

EAS No. (47) Introduces a three-stage approach to impairment for Financial Assets that are not credit-impaired
at the date of origination or purchase. This approach is summarized as follows:

Stage 1: The Group recognizes a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
This represents the portion of lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are expected within 12
months of the reporting date, if credit risk has not increased significantly after initial recognition.

Stage 2: The Group recognizes a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
for those Financial Assets which are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. This requires the computation of ECL based on lifetime probability of default, lifetime loss
given default and lifetime exposure at default that represents the probability of default occurring over the
remaining lifetime of the Financial Asset. Allowance for credit losses are higher in this stage because of an
increase in credit risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being considered compared to 12 months in
Stage 1.

Stage 3: The Group recognizes a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, via the
expected recoverable cash flows for the asset, for those Financial Assets that are credit impaired. For further
detail see following paragraph “Credit-impaired Financial Assets in Stage 3”.

The Group calculates expected credit losses for each financial asset individually. Similarly, the determination
of the need to transfer between stages is made on an individual asset basis.

3.6.2.3 Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Under EAS No. (47), when determining whether the credit risk (i.e., risk of default) of a Financial Asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information based on the Group’s historical experience, credit risk assessment and forward-looking
information (including macro-economic factors). The assessment of significant credit deterioration is key in
determining when to move from measuring an allowance based on 12-month ECLs to one that is based on
lifetime ECLs (i.e., transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2).

3.6.2.4 Credit-impaired Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the indicators for impairment of receivables balances, in order to
take the necessary actions to account for impairment against the amounts that may not be collected from
customers.

The study is necessary to ensure that clients own and maintain a portfolio of shares to cover the debt owed to
them - enabling the Group to take necessary measures to preserve the Group's right in case of any amounts due
from customers and failure or delay in payment. The calculation using aging reports will not be applicable on
brokerage receivables as there is no specified or expected time frame for clearing or collection, however a
provision is to be formed for the difference between debit due balance and the value of owned shares
(collateral).

For Financial Assets considered to be credit-impaired, the ECL allowance covers the amount of loss the Group
is expected to incur. The estimation of ECLs is done on a case-by-case basis for non-homogeneous portfolios,
or by applying portfolio-based parameters to individual Financial Assets in these portfolios via the Group’s
ECL model for homogeneous portfolios.

Forecasts of future economic conditions when calculating ECLs are considered. The lifetime expected losses
are estimated based on the probability-weighted present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group under the contract; and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
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i
R 3.6.2.5 Collateral for Financial Assets considered in the Impairment Analysis
o EAS No. (47) requires cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancement to be reflected in the
' ECL calculation. The following are key aspects with respect to collateral and guarantees:
A_‘ a - T . - - - -
J - Eligibility of collateral, i.e. which collateral should be considered in the ECL calculation;
- - Collateral evaluation, i.e. what collateral (liquidation) value should be used; and
- Projection of the available collateral amount over the life of a transaction.
] 3.6.2.6 Critical Accounting Estimates
B The accounting estimates and judgments related to the impairment of Financial Assets is a critical accounting
estimate because the underlying assumptions used can change from period to period and may significantly
B affect the Group’s results of operations.
. In assessing assets for impairments, management judgment is required, particularly in projecting future
A economic information and scenarios where circumstances of economic and financial uncertainty, when
developments and changes to expected cash flows can occur both with greater rapidity and less predictability.

L

The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may differ from the estimates used by management
and consequently may cause actual losses to differ from reported allowances.

I

3.6.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset, and the net presented in the balance sheet only when the
Company has, at the balance sheet date, the legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to recognize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

o bl

3-7 Property, Plant and equipment and depreciation

A- Initial Recognition & measurement
Items of Property, Plant and equipment are reported in the statement of financial position at historical cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. If the essential components of an item of Property,
Plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
within those Property, Plant and equipment.
The components of an item of Property, Plant and equipment that have different useful lives are accounted for
as separate items within those Property, Plant and equipment.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal Property, Plant and equipment is recognized in the profit or loss
statement.

B- Subsequent costs

L4 Ll

N

)
_

i
!

\

-

]

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized separately, as appropriate, only

- when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity.
C- Depreciation

7] Depreciation of the depreciable assets which is reported as historical cost, less salvage value according to
- (Straight Line method) and is-charged to income statement over the useful life-of each group of assets. Lands
) are not depreciated.
N
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-
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-8

The following are estimated useful lives for Property, Plant and equipment that are used to calculate
depreciation:

Asset Years
Right of use assets 5 Years
Buildings 50 Years
Leasehold improvements 5 Years
Computer equipment & programs 3 Years
Telecommunication 5 Years
Transportation & vehicles 5 Years
Furniture 5 Years

The Company reviews the book values of depreciable Property, Plant and equipment when events or changes
in circumstances occur that indicate that the book value may not be recoverable, and the book value of the
asset is reduced to the recoverable value if the book value exceeds the recoverable value, and the recoverable
value represents the net selling value of the asset Or the value in use of the asset, whichever is higher. The
profits or losses resulting from the exclusion of Property, Plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the net selling value with the book value, and those profits or (losses) are included in other operating income
or {expenses) in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets and goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with a finite useful life that are acquired individually are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis based on
the useful life of the intangible asset on the income statement. The method of amortization for intangible assets
isreviewed at the date of the financial statements, considering that the effect of any changes in those estimates
is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired separately with an indefinite useful life are stated at cost, less any cumulative
accumulated impairment losses.

Both the customer and brand contractual relationship are amortized over 20 years

Ending the exploiting and disposing of assets

Recognition of an intangible asset is excluded from the financial position when disposed of or when there is
no expectation of future economic benefits will accrue from its use or disposal in the future.

Profits or losses resulting from the discontinuation of exploitation of the intangible asset or its disposal are
determined on the basis of the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the book value of the asset,
and such profits or losses are included in the consolidated statement of income when the asset is no longer
recognized.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognized at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired.
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation tili December 31, 2021

3-9 Assets held for sale

3-10

3-11

3-12

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the
remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rate basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial
assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue
to be measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held-for-sale or held-for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized
or depreciated, and any equity accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than biological
assets, investment property, inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising
from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is the current value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation or amortization) if no impairment loss had been recognized in previous years.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at
banks, demand deposits and short-term, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with a maturity
date of three months or less from the acquisition date less overdraft accounts.

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method.
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3-13

Revenue recognition
The EAS No. (48) Supersedes the following Egyptian Accounting Standards:

a) EAS No. (8) “Construction Contracts™ as amended in 2015
b)Y EAS No. (11) “Revenue” as amended in 2015

1
2)
3)
4)

5)

More specifically, EAS No. (48) Sets out that the recognition of the revenue is based on the following five steps:

identify the contract with the customer;

identify the contractual obligation to transfer goods and/or services (known as performance obligations);
determine the transaction price;

allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations identified based on the stand-alone selling price of
each good or service; and

Recognize revenue when the related performance obligation is met,

The Group applies the EAS No. (48) five-step revenue recognition model to the recognition of fees and
commissions income, under which income must be recognized when services are transferred, hence the
contractual performance obligations to the customer has been satisfied.

The Group adopted EAS No. (48) With reference to the three business units in which the Group operates at the
date of adoption: Brokerage, Asset Management and Investment Banking.

Accordingly, after a contract with a customer has been identified in the first step, the second step is to identify
the performance obligation - or a series of distinct performance obligations - provided to the customer. The
Group examines whether the service is capable of being distinct and is distinct within the context of the contract.

A promised service is distinct if the customer can benefit from the service either on its own or together with
other resources that are readily available to the customer, and the promise to transfer the service to the customer
is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract.

The amount of income is measured based on the contractually agreed transaction price for the performance
obligation defined in the contract. If a contract includes variable consideration, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised services to a customer.
Income is recognized in profit and loss when the identified performance obligation has been satisfied.

Following the adoption of EAS No. (48), fee and commission income is presented in the income statement
separately from fee and commission expense.

The Group acts as the main source and Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 requires that the costs of
implementing contracts be presented separately in the income statement within fees and commission
expenditures.

The Group provides Asset Management services that give rise to asset management and performance fees and
constitute a single performance obligation. The asset management and performance fee components are variable
considerations such that at each reporting date the Group estimates the fee amount to which it will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised services to the customer. The benefits arising from the asset management
services are simultaneously received and consumed by the customer over time, The Group recognizes revénue
over time by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation, subject to the
removal of any uncertainty as to whether it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative amount
of revenue recognized would occur or not. For the management fee component this is the end of the service
period. For performance fees this date is when any uncertainty related to the performance component has been
fully removed.

Management has assessed the impact of application of the new standard on the Group’s financial statements,
analyzing each of its revenue streams by applying the five-step model, and concluded there was no impact.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Promotion and coverage fees

The revenue of the activity, which is represented by the guarantee and promotion fees and coverage of the
companies' subscription, is recognized when the service is completed.

Management fees for securities portfolios and investment funds

Management fees are calculated based on the terms of the contract for each portfolio or investment fund and are
recognized on an accrual basis. Performance incentives are recognized based on the agreed rates calculated based
on the annualized yield of the portfolio to be recognized only if there is an appropriate assurance of revenue
recognition and the possibility of collection.

Brokerage commissions
Sale commissions

Commissions received from customers for the sale of shares made in their favor on the Egyptian or international
stock exchange and represent a percentage of the sale is agreed with the client.

Purchase commissions

Commissions collected from clients for share purchases made in their favor on the Egyptian or international
stock exchange and represent a percentage of the purchase that is agreed upon with the client.

Records management commissions

Central maintenance commissions are established based on the contracts concluded with the customers and
brokering companies on the date of completion of transactions in the sale and purchase of shares.

Deposit commissions, commissions for the acquisition of customer shares and share transfer commissions are
established based on the contracts concluded with customers according to the accrual principle.

Collecting commissions for collection of coupons when performing the service to the customer is the collection
of these coupons on behalf of customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis based on the proportionate time distribution taking into account
the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applied over the period to maturity.

Dividend’s income

Dividend income from investments - other than investments in associates and joint ventures - is recognized when
the right to share the dividends is established.

Other income
Other income is recognized for other services provided by the Group on an accrual basis.

3-14 Legal reserves

In accordance with the articles of association, 5% of the annual net income is required to be transferred to a
legal reserve until its balance reaches 50% of issued capital. The company is required to resume transfer of net
profit to the legal reserve once its balance falls below this percentage. This reserve can be used for covering the
incurred losses and for the increase of the Company capital subject to the approval of the shareholders in general
assembly.

3-15 Dividends to shareholders

The Parent Group's dividends are recognized on its shareholders and in the non-controlling interests' share of
the profits declared by the Group's subsidiaries as a liability to the financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders of each group. This also applies to the remuneration of the
Board of Directors and the share of the profit holders.
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Translation of financial statements
griginally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-16 Emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense when the related service is provided. The amount
expected to be paid as a liability is recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to pay the
amount as a result of the employee providing a previous service and the obligation can be estimated to a reliable
extent.

a)Insurance and pensions

The Group shall pay its contributions to the General Authority for Social Insurance on a compulsory basis in
accordance with the rules stipulated in the Social Insurance Law. The Group has no other obligations as soon
as it pays its obligations. Regular contributions are recognized as a periodic cost in the year of maturity and are
included in the cost of labor.

h)Emplovee profit share

The Group shall pay a profit share of 10% of the profits after deducting the legal reserve deducted from such
profits to be distributed to the shareholders not exceeding the total annual remuneration of the employees and
recognizing the share of profit employees in the income statement items and liabilities when approved by the
general assembly of the shareholders of the group. No liability is recognized for the share of employees in
undistributed profits.

3-17 Earnings per share

The basic share of profit or loss is disclosed. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.

3-18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at ameortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognized in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

3-19 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events and that it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the
costs to settle related obligations are probable and a reliable estimate is made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, it’s carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows. Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision
increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognized in the financial profit or loss
as finance costs.

3-20 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except for income tax
relating to items of equity that are recognized in OCI or directly in equity or business combination.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
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originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

ii. Deferred tax

3-21

ii

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future
taxable profits are determined based on business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the way the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity.
Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards 24 “income tax”.

Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (treasury shares)

When shares recognized as (issued capital) are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly atiributable costs is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury
shares and are presented in the treasury share reserve. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently,
the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction
is presented within share premium.

3-22 Lease contracts

At incorporation of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in EAS 49. This policy is applied to contract entered since company
incorporation or after.

3.22.1 Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for
the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease component. The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In
that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing
sources and makes certain adjustiments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

- and the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties
for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised
in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is premeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero. The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of financial
position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low — value assets and
short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.22.2 As a lessor

At incorporation or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each Jease component on the basis of their relative stand- alone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease incorporation whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such
as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-o fuse asset arising from
the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies
the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Group applies EAS 11 to allocate the
consideration in the contract.
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-23

3-24

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in EAS 47 to the net investment in the lease.
The Group further regularly reviews estimated ungunaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross
investment in the lease.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the
lease term as part of ‘other revenue.

Fair values measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is determined based on the market value of the financial instrument or
similar financial instruments at the date of Issuance of the financial statements without deducting any estimated
future selling costs. The values of financial assets are determined at the current purchase prices of those assets,
while the value of financial liabilities is determined at the current prices at which those liabilities can be settled.

In the absence of an active market to determine the fair value of financial instruments, the fair value is estimated
using different valuation methods, taking into account the prices of recent transactions, and being guided by the
current fair value of other instruments that are fundamentally similar - the discounted cash flow method - or any
other method. Values result in reliable values.

When using the discounted cash flows techniques as a valuation model the future cash flows are estimated, used
in the managements best estimate and the discount rate used is determined in the light of prevailing market price,
and the date of the financial statements which are identical to the financial instruments in nature and conditions.

Operating Segments
Investment banking services

As a subsidiary to Beltone Holding and as an investment link, the Group assists companies in mergers and
acquisitions and provides additional services such as market making, derivatives and securities trading.

The Group works with leading regional and international investment banks in emerging and developed markets,
with an unparalleled understanding of the market in the MENA region, where it has developed strong expertise
in various sectors and productive areas. The Group provides high level attention at every stage of engagement,
affirming the client's total commitment.

With respect to the IPO promotion and coverage activity, the Group receives profits mainly through success and
agency fees.

Asset management
As a subsidiary to Beltone Holding and as part of its asset management activities, the Group prides itself on the

customer-focused approach, to pursue a long-term relationship with clients by offering customized products
commensurate with return and risk.

The Group aims to provide clients with easy access to diversified investment opportunities across the markets by
providing an experienced asset manager and providing a wide range of products and services that meet the needs
of local and international institutional investors (such as insurance companies, retirement funds, social security,
banks, mail, sovereign wealth funds, offices. Family, institutions and endowments).

In the asset management business, the Group receives profits mainly through management and performance fees.

Brokerage and custody

As a subsidiary to Beltone Holding and as a brokerage and custody services company, the Group works on linking
buyers and sellers to facilitate investment transactions in the stock markets, especially in relation to the Egyptian
Stock Exchange.

The Group provides market research and market data using advanced tools and resources to reach the largest
possible base of buyers and sellers, as well as screening potential buyers or sellers for the best match.

As for the services rendered, the Group receives profits mainly through commissions and fees that are collected
once the transaction is completed, and interest income if the Group also provides financial support for the client's
investment.

25



AN

SRR R U R B B

]

-
I
|

L]

il

N L O O O B O R S R O B BN B W A

RSN

]

|

C

i

L. L

[

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-25

Non-banking financial activities
As a subsidiary to Beltone Holding, the Group provides non-banking financial activities represented in lease

financing activities, installment sales services, and capital services, Real estate finance and risk. The Group
receives profits mainly through interest income or through commissions and fees that are made Collected once
the transaction is completed and over the course of the confract.

Other

The holding company may participate in establishing companies that issue securities or increase their capital and
provide technical support and the administration of the subsidiary companies, for the activity of the sector that
receives profits mainly through management fee.

Financial instruments and their risk management

The Group’s financial instruments represent financial assets and liabilities. Financial assets include cash balances
with banks, treasury bills, due from related parties, and financial investments at fair value through profits or
losses, customers, and financial obligations and creditors.

The Group may be exposed to a number of risks resulting from the exercise of its activities, which may affect the
values of these financial assets and liabilities, as well as the revenues and expenses related to them. The following
are the most important of those risks and the bases and policies that the Group follows in managing these risks:

3.25.1 Capital Management

The Group manages its capital in order to maintain the group companies' ability to continue and to achieve the
highest return for shareholders by maintaining balanced ratios of debt and equity balances.

The capital is not subject to any requirements imposed by parties outside the Group. In accordance with the
Group's internal policies and procedures, the executive management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review management considers the cost of capital and the associated risks.
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originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “SAE”
Notes for consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3.25.2 Classification of financial instruments

In thousands of EGP

Financial assets 31 December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 1,190,879
Trade receivable : 768,161
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ; 42,718
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss : 34,354
Other assets ; 16,015
Due from companies working in securities : 60
Due from related parties 14
TOTAL i 2,052,201

Financial liabilities

Credit facilities ; 1,000,785

Customers - credit balances 463,020
Lease liabilities 20,880
Due to related parties " 1,584
Other liabilities 3 95,992
TOTAL | 1,582,261

3.25.3 Financial risk management objectives

The group manages and evaluates the financial risks associated with the group’s activity through internal control
reports, which analyze the impact of those risks and the means to confront them. Financial risks include market
risks (foreign currency risk, other price risks and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

1- Market risk

A- Foreign currency risk management related to operations:

Foreign exchange risk is the changes in foreign exchange rates that affect payments and receipts in foreign
currencies as well as the valuation of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies. The management periodically
monitors the balances of foreign currencies and their prices in effect in banks and reduces the exposed balances
of foreign currencies, as most of these assets represent cash at banks and investment fund documents of a
relatively monetary nature, which helps reduce the risk to a minimum.

B- other currencies risk

It is the risk of changing the value of financial instruments as a result of fluctuations in market prices (except for
those resulting from interest rate risks or currency price risks), whether these changes are related to a specific
security or its issuer or factors affecting the trading of securities in the market in general, the company limits the
risks Other prices by maintaining a diversified investment portfolio and actively following the main factors that
affect the movement of the stock and bond market.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

C- Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because it obtains credit facilities as it seeks to obtain financing from
others at fixed and variable interest rates. The group manages the interest rate risk by appropriately mixing sources

of financing with fixed and variable interest rates, as well as investing in debt instruments.

2- Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, which
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s management manages the financial liquidity
in a way that ensures, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations when
due under normal and exceptional circumstances, without incurring unacceptable losses or affecting the Group’s

reputation.

The prudent management of liquidity risk requires the maintenance of an adequate level of cash and the

availability of adequate financing.

Asof Decomber 31,2024 Carrying Expected Less than  Between1  More than
(In thousands of EGP) amount cash flows (*) 1 year and 5 years 5 years
Liabilities
Credit facilities 1,000,785 1,000,785 619,169 381,616 -
Customers - credit balances 463,020 463,020 463,020 - -
Lease liabilities 20,880 20,880 4,937 15,943 -
Provisions 33,744 33,744 33,744 - -
Current income tax liabilities 16,160 16,160 16,160 - -
Due to related parties 1,584 1,584 1,584 - -
Other liabilities 96,013 96,013 96,013 - -
1,632,186 1,632,186 1,234,627 397,559 -

* Expected cash flows are the total contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest, fees and other fees.
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QOrascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

3-26 Credit risk:

Credit risk is represented in the inability of customers, related parties or other parties granted credit to pay their
dues. The company studies the credit situation before granting or obtaining credit, and the company reviews the
balances owed to it and loans granted to related parties on a periodic basis.

(In thousands of EGP) " December 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents 1,190,879
Trade receivables 768,161
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss : 34,354
Due from companies working in securities : 60
Due from related parties 14
Other assets : 16,015
Total 2,016,785

3-27 Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is measured according to the following levels:

Level 1 Quoted prices of financial instruments at fair value in active markets.

Level 2 Quoted prices in an active market for financial instruments or prices
announced by managers of invested funds or other valuation methods in
which all significant inputs are based on comparative market information,
whether directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Valuation methods for which no significant input factors are based on

comparative market information.

The following is the fair value of the company's financial instruments that are measured at fair value
on a periodic basis:

Financial assets Fair value Level of fair Evaluation methods
as of 31 Dec, 2021 VYalue and main inputs
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss 2,148 Second Quoted prices from fund managers

Financial assets measured at fair Advertised prices in active markets

20,000 First

value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair Other valuation techniques
value through profit or loss 7,031 Second

Financial assets measured at fair Other valuation technique

value through profit or loss 3,175 Second

Financial assets measured at fair
value through other 18,378 First
comprehensive income markets

Advertised prices in active
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

Transfation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

5 Goodwill & other intangible assets

Clients’
contractual
(In thousands of EGP) Trademarks relationships  Goodwill  Other Total
A-Cost ; :
Cost resulted from the demerger 24,900 78,299 298,871 . 402,070 -
Acquisition during the period - - 1,039 3,870 4,909
As of December 31, 2021 24,900 78,299 299,910 3,870 406,979
B-Accumulated amortization 1
Accumulated amortization resulting from the (6,247) (19,627) ) i ( ('2 5,874)
demerger 3 _
Amortization for the period (1,245) (3,910) - .| (5,155)
Impairment loss for the period - - (1,039) - (1,039)
As of December 31, 2021 (7,492) (23,537) (1,039) - (32,068) -
Net book value :
As of December 31, 2021 17,408 54,762 298,871 3,870 ; 374,911 |
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

7 Equity accouted investees
(In thousands EGP)

Contribution % December 31, 2021

Contact Financial Holding * 29.79% 1,847,401
Electronic Asset Management Services for Investment Funds 20% 286
The International Management Services Company in the field of y

’ 20% 452
investment funds

Axes Holding company 33.9% 9,816
Total equity accounted investees 1,857,955
Impairment in investments (Axes Holding company) (9,816)
Net equity accounted investees 1,848,139

* Contact Financial Holding (formerly Sarwa Capital Financial Holding)

- The amount is represented in the value of the company’s investments in Contact Financial Holding Company
(formerly Sarwa Capital Financial Holding), where the extraordinary general assembly of Orascom Investment
Holding was held on October 19, 2020, and it approved by majority the decision to divide the company according
to the horizontal division method with the book value of the share to Demerger company, which is Orascom
Investment Holding Company, and a divided company, which is Orascom Financial Holding Company, which
was established in December 2020, so that Orascom Investment Holding Company will retain all assets and
obligations, except for the investment in Beltone Financial Holding Company (a subsidiary) and the investment
in Sarwa Capital Holding Company for Investments Finance (sister company), where they are transferred to
Orascom Financial Holding Company.

- The Group's share of the profits of Contact Financial Holding Company is as follows during the period from the

date of incorporation till December 31, 2021:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Net finance and operating revenues 1,088,675
Net revenues from insurance services activities 135,567
Net other operating revenues 3,969
Total expenses (566,122)
Income tax (184,029)
Net profit after tax 478,060
Owners of the parent company 464,819
Group’s share of profit of the associate company 138,487
Decrease in investment resulting from the decrease in ownership percentage (7,520)
Amortization of client list (13,242)
Deferred Tax 2,979
120,704
The following table shows the movement of investment during the period:
(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Opening balance resulted from the demerger 1,770,674
Adjustments of new accounting standards (EAS 48) on the opening balance (4,680)
Adjusted opening balance 1,765,994
Dividends during the period (37,537)
Group’s share in the profits of the associate company (income statement) 120,704
Group’s share in the profits of the associate company (comprehensive income (1,760)
statement) ;
Ending balance 1,847,401
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

8 Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Indicators Fund Company 6,985
Egypt Opportunities Fund SP 11,393
Total financial assets (at fair value) 18,378
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Misr for Central Clearing, Depository and Registry* 11,029
Guarantee Settlement Fund* 10,017
El Arabi for Investment * 194
Commodities Exchange* 3,000
MENA Capital * 2,608
BMG company S.A.E. 100
Less: impairment loss in investments™* (2.608)
Total financial assets (at cost) * 24,340
Total financial assets measured at fair value through OCI 42,718

* The investments in these companies are mandatory investments and are recorded at cost because they represent
shares in companies that are not listed on the stock exchange, therefore have no published price in active markets
and their fair value cannot be measured reliably, taking into consideration that the Group owns an insignificant
contribution percentage in these companies which leads to difficulties in reaching detailed information needed

for the measurement of the fair value.

9 Other assets

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Other assets - non-current

Deposits with others 7,469
Total other assets - non-current 7,469
Other assets — current

Employee advances and imprests 372
Deposits with others 2095
Withholding tax 745
Other tax 669
Prepaid expenses 8,097
Suppliers-advances 2,878
Other debit balances current 6,371
Less: Impairment in other assets * (5,459)
Total other assets - current 15,848
Total other assets 23,317
* Impairment loss in other assets

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Balance resulted from the demerger (5,300)
Formed during the period (103)
Forign currencies transalation differnces (56)
Total other assets (5,459)
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

10 Deferred tax asset / (liabilities)

Deferred income taxes are calculated on the temporary tax differences according to the liability method using a
tax rate of 22.5%. Tax liabilities arose with the Group on the temporary differences resulting from the difference
in the accounting basis from the tax basis of the assets and liabilities, and they are explained as follows:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021

Depreciation and amortization (19,730)
Dividends (14,317)
Foreign currencies translation differences 4,655
Net deferred tax liabilities (29,392)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in net when the Group has a legal right to offset between current
tax assets and liabilities, as well as when the deferred tax assets and liabilities are settled in the same tax authority
in the country and when the Group intends to settle those balances net or to recover the value of assets and settle
the value of tax liabilities in same time.

The following table shows the most important items of deferred tax liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated financial statements:

In thousands of EGP Depreciation Undistributed  Foreign December
and dividends currency 31, 2021
amortization differences
Balance resulted from the demerger (20,254) (9,308) 4,655 (24,907)
Tax on dividends - 1,914 - 1,914
Charged to the statement of income during the 524 (6,923)
period (22
Net deferred tax liabilities (19,730) (14,317) 4,655 (29,392)
11 Trade receivables
(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Trade receivables* 956,681
Less: Expected credit loss (188,520)
Net trade receivables 768,161

The following table shows the analysis of the movement of the relevant expected credit loss allowance from the
date of application until the date of preparing the consolidated financial statements:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021

Expected credit loss at the beginning of the period (resulted from demerge) (19,199)
Expected credit losses incurred during the period (169,321)
Ending balance of the period . (188,520)

The following tables illustrate the classification of financial assets at the date of the financial statements within
the stages of the general approach model and the simplified approach and the relevant expected credit losses from
the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31,2021 Expected credit loss December 31, 2021

General approach model — Stage 1 206,100 (674) 205,426
General approach model — Stage 2 - - -
General approach model — Stage 3 326,360 (131,155) 195,205
Simplified approach model * 424,221 (56,691) 367,530
Total 956,681 (188,520) 768,161
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Translation of financial statements

originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

* The following table shows the trade receivables information that is subject to the simplified approach for expected
credit loss.

(In thousands of EGP) Between 0 Between 91 Between 181 Due more than Total

As of 31 December 2021 to 90 days to 180 days to 360 days 360 days

Total book value 367,633 1,550 2,887 52,151 424221
Expected credit loss (4,076) (125) (339) (52,151) (56,691)
Total 363,557 1,425 2,548 - 367,530

12 Related parties

(12.1) Key management personnel allowances and remunerations

Financial period

(In thousands of EGP) SRR 0
incorporation till
December 31, 2021
Key management personnel allowances and remunerations 58,490
58,490
(12.2) Due from related parties
(In thousands of EGP) Nat'u "y O.f Account nature December 31, 2021
relationship
Beltone Mena Equity Fund Other Current account 440
Indicators Fund Company Associate Current account 11
Less: Impairment loss of due from related
> (437)
parties
14

(12.3) Due to related parties

(In thousands of EGP) Nat.u e Of Account Nature December 31, 2021
relationship

Orascom Investment Holding Affiliate Current account 3

International Company for Management Services .

i1 fhe el of favestment s Associate Current account 882

The electronic company for management :

services in the field of investment funds aIIecIe Cumentaaeaut R
1,584

(12.4) Major transactions with related parties
(In thousands of EGP) LT e Account Nature = December 31, 2021

Transaction  relationship

Expenses paid on

Orascom Investment Holding bishalf o eroto

Affiliate Current account 7,951
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

13 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021

Investments in index fund 807
Investment in Nasdaq 1,341
Investment in treasury bills 20,000
Financial Assets- Kemet Eats-Eltor 7,031
Financial Assets- Delta 5.l7/5
Total financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 34,354

14 Cash and cash equivalents

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021

Cash on hand 38
Cash at banks-local currency 731,501
Cash at banks-foreign currencies 145,497
Bank deposits (less than 3 months) 158,438
Investment Funds EGP * 108,996
Settlement balances at the clearance bank 46,409
Cash and cash equivilents 1,190,879

* The Group invests in the Daily fund at the Arab International Banking Company, and the fund invests in a variety
of short-term fixed-income debt instruments such as short-term bank deposits and treasury bills. The number of
instruments acquired by the Group in the fund has reached 4,852,475 instruments as of December 31, 2021, and
the value of the instruments on December 31, 2021, is amounting to EGP 22.461.

15 Issued and paid-up capital
The authorized capital was at EGP 8,130,820,461, and the issued and paid-up capital amounted to EGP
1,626,164,092.20, distributed over 5,245,690,620 shares with a nominal value of 31 piasters / share, in accordance
with the decision of the General Investment Authority, and the approval of the extraordinary general assembly of
Orascom Investment Holding (the demergimg company). As detailed in note no. 1-C.

The following table lists the largest shareholders in the Company, in addition to the remaining other shares as of
December 31, 2021:

The percentage of

Shareholders Ordinary shares  ordinary shares that

have the voting right
Orascom Acquisition SARL 2,709,989 51.7%
Orascom TMT Investment SARL 33,486 0.6%
Other 2,502,216 47.7%
Total available ordinary shares 5,245,691 100%

16 Un-distributable profits

The retained earnings balances as of December 31, 2021, include an amount of EGP 21 million, that is
undistributable, which represents the balance of legal reserves that the subsidiaries set aside from their profits.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

17 Credit facilities

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Credit facilities * 851,134
Credit facilities- Sale and lease-back contracts** 149,651
Total credit facilities 1,000,785

* The item represents the bank facilities granted to the group companies to finance the delivery operations in
exchange for payment for the activity of trading securities and these facilities without guarantee at the average
market interest rate.

** During 2021, Beltone executed a sale and lease-back contract for the 33th and 34th administrative floors, located
in building No. 2005 C, Nile City Towers, owned by Beltone Financial Holding, with Global Corp for Fianancial
Services (a related party). Under the terms of the contract, the company leases the building for a period of
7 years, starting from May 20, 2021 and ended on May 19, 2028 .

The lessee has the right to purchase the leased asset according to the following conditions:

- To pay an additional amount of EGP 1 after paying all amounts due under this contract.

- The accelerated payment, whereby the lessee pays the present value of the total unpaid rental value in addition
to an accelerated payment commission of 3% of the total principal amount remaining for the unpaid rents on
the date of the accelerated payment.

The credit facilities are as follows:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Current balances 619,169
Non-current balances 381,616
Total balance 1,000,785

- The following table shows the movement on credit facilities during the financial period ending in:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Opening balance resulted from the demerger

Current portion 477,091
Non-current portion -
Financing interests - credit facilities - in the consolidated income statement 80,010
Fnterest on credit facilities from sale and leaseback contracts - on the consolidated : 10297
income statement ¢
Net proceeds from credit facilities and interest paid 434,824
Payments for interest from current loans (1,437)
Ending balance for the period 1,000,785
Current portion 619,169
Non-current portion 381,616
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

18 Lease liabilities

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Formed in January 2021 283915
Additions during the period 770
Payment for lease liabilities during the period (6,200)
Interest on lease liabilities during the period (disclosure no. 23) 25335
Total balance 20,880
19 Customers — credit balances
(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Brokerage customers 463,020
Total brokerage customers 463,020

Customers- credit balances are represented by advances made by the customers to buy shares in the activity of
securities trading, in addition to coupons collected for the benefit of the customers that are also being transferred
to these customers.

20 Provisions

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Balance resulted from the demerger 53,262
Formed during the period 10,649
No-longer required during the period (22,823)
Used during the period (7,344)
Ending balance 33,744

Provisions are made according to the best estimate of the expected value of the obligations at the date of the
consolidated financial statements arising from the Group's exercise of its activities and its contractual relationships
with third parties. The management annually reviews and settles these provisions according to the latest
developments, discussions and agreements with the concerned parties. The usual published information about
provisions in accordance with Egyptian accounting standards was not disclosed, because the Group's management
believes that doing so may severely affect the results of negotiations with those parties.

21 Other liabilities

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Accrued expenses 36,120
Suppliers 16,812
Payables to employees 4,354
Accrued commissions : 4,113
Accrued interest -credit facilities 1,975
Financial Regulatory Authority “FRA” fees 1,704
Payables to banks & companies for bookkeeping 986
National Authority for Social Insurance 628
Insurance deposits-Lease contracts 607
Misr for Central Clearing, Depository and Registry 458
Other credit balances 28,256
Total other liabilities 96,013
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Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

22 Fee and commission income

Financial period from the

(In thousands of EGP) date of incorporation till
December 31, 2021
Investment banking commission 10,883
Asset management commission 47,805
Finance lease commission 2017
Consumer finance commissions 990
Brokerage commission 93,987
Custodian fees 14,325
Total fee and commission income 170,167

23 Interest income / (expenses)

(In thousands of EGP)

Financial period from
the date of incorporation

till December 31, 2021

Interest income from financial assets

Interest from purchase margin 122,803
Interest from banks 23,240
Interest from customers — credit balances 16,426
Interest from finance lease 28,932
Interest on consumer finance 832
Interest income from financial instruments 192,233
interest expense on financial liabilities at amortized cost

Interest on the credit facilities* (80,010)
Interest on the credit facilities related to transactions of financial lease (10,297)
Interest on lease liabilities (2,335)
Interest expense from financial instruments (92,642)
Net interest income/ (expense) 99,591

* The financing interests represent the interest on credit facilities related to the activity of trading securities to
finance the operations of delivery versus payment (DVP) and buying on margin in the securities stock exchange.

24 Other operating expenses

Financial period from the

(In thousands of EGP) date of incorporation till
December 31, 2021
Headquarters’ expenses 8,329
Linking lines and information 29,180
Technical services and consultations expenses 16,434
Training expenses 1,944
Travelling and accomodation expenses 192
Printing and advertising expenses 3,169
Govermental and other expenses 28,959
Total other operating expenses 88,207
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

25 Income tax expense

(In thousands of EGP)

Financial period from
the date of incorporation

till December 31, 2021
Current income tax (19,071)
Deferred income tax (4,485)
Total income tax expense (23,556)

Effective tax rate:

(In thousands of EGP)

Financial period from
the date of incorporation

till December 31, 2021
Net (loss) for the period (78,554)
Income tax based on Applicable tax rate (22.5%) (17,675)
Effect of tax adjustments 41,231
Income tax expense 23,556
Effective tax rate 30%

26 (Losses) per share

(In thousands of EGP)

Net (loss) for the period (in thousands of EGP)

Weighted average shares during the period (in thousands of EGP)

Financial period from
the date of incorporation
till December 31, 2021

(23,734)
5,245,691

Basic and diluted (losses) per share (EGP/share)

(0.0045)

Basic: Basic (losses) per share is calculated by dividing the net (loss) attributable to shareholders of the parent
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted: Diluted (losses) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding assuming conversion of all convertible financial instruments and share options. The net loss is
adjusted by omission of the cost of convertible debt instruments taking tax effect into consideration.
As for share option the average potential shares to be issued by options is added to the average ordinary shares
and deducting from that the average potential shares weighted by the relation between the exercise price and
average fair value of the share during period. As there are no debt instruments that are convertible to bonds, so

diluted and basic (losses) per share are equal.
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

27 Subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests

Country of  Percentage of Book value of

operations NCI % NCI
December 31, December 31,

(In thousands of EGP) 2021 2021
Beltone Financial Holding company Egypt 41.85% 133,049
DOT technologies and software development Egypt 79.90% 5,168

- All commitment of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements. The proportion of voting
rights in the subsidiaries directly owned by the company is not different from the proportion of ordinary shares
held. The company does not have any interest in preferred shares in the subsidiaries included in the Group.

The following tables summarise the financial information of most importance for subsidiaries with significant

non-controlling interestes-Beltone Financial Holding compay:
Summarized statemnet of financial position :

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Current assets 1,411,528
Current liabilities (1,204,529)
Net current assets 206,999
Non-current assets 560,146
Non-current liabilities (396,397)
Net non-current liabilities 163,749
Net assets 370,748
Non-controlling interests before consolidation adjustments 155,158
Consolidation adjustments (22,109)
Non-controlling interests balance 133,049
Summarized income statement and statement of comprehensive income:
(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021
Total revenues 221,120
Total expenses (373,090)
(loss) before income tax (151,970)
Income tax (17,792)
(loss) for the period after tax (169,762)
Total other comprehensive Income 452
Total comprehensive (loss) (169,310)
Share of non-controlling interests before consolidation adjustments (70,856)
Consolidation adjustments (2,449)
Share of non-controlling interests (73,305)
Summarized statement of cash flows:
December
Before 31, 2021 After
ik thawsandsoliEGE) consolidation consolidation consolidation
adjustments adjustments adjustments
Net cash flows generated by operating activities 44,990 (18,143) 26,847
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (11,276) - (11,276)
Net cash flows generated by financing activities 488,980 18,143 507,123
Net change in cash and cash equivalent during the period 522,694 - 522,694
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash and cash equivalents 6 - 6
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning period 336,562 - 336,562
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 859,262 - 859,262
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Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Orascom Financial Holding “S.A.E.”
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the period from the date of incorporation till December 31, 2021

28 Joint arrangements (joint operations)

- The Group owns 50% of Misr Beltone Investment Funds Management Company, a "joint operation”. During
the year 2020, the Group recognized its share in the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint
operation with the items represented in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

- when the Group deals with the joint operation, the profits and losses are excluded within the limits of the Group's
share in this project.

- With reference to the correspondences received from Banque Misr on December 4, 2019, not to renew the
contract concluded between the bank and Misr Beltone Company to manage Banque Misr investment funds in
pounds, euros and dollars, which expires on December 31, 2019.

- With reference to the invitation that was addressed to the document holders of the Banque Misr Insurance Fund
and the Banque du Cairo Fund on February 25, 2020, by changing the fund manager, Misr Beltone Fund
Management Company to Beltone Investment Fund Management Company, which was approved and approved
by the Financial regulatory Authority on April 7, 2020.

- Based on the above, there will be no funds under the management of Misr Beltone Company to manage
investment funds during the next periods.

- On September 30, 2020, it was approved to suspend the company's activity temporarily for one year from the
date of the extraordinary general assembly meeting.

- On January 1, 2021, the Group acquired the remaining 50% of Misr Beltone Company through Beltone Financial
Holding Company and its subsidiaries for EGP 3,800,000,

29 Tax status

First: tax status of the holding company

Corporate tax
The Company is subject to the provisions of the tax law no. 91 of 2005, and its amendments and its executive

regulations and its amendments.
The Company will submit the first tax return which will cover the financial period from the date of incorporation
on December 10, 2020, till December 31, 2021.

Pavroll taxes
The Company pays the payroll tax, in the legal time frame.

Withholding Tax

The Company is subject to the provisions of Law 91 of 2005, and its amendments and its executive regulations
and amendments regarding withholding tax retaining and collection under the tax account, and the Company
pays the withholding tax on the legal time frame.

Second: tax status for the significant subsidiary (Beltone Financial Holding)

Corporate tax
The company is subject to the provisions of the tax law no. 91 of 2005 and it’s executive regulations.

The company's tax returns for the years from the date of incorporation until December 31, 2016, were submitted
in accordance with the provisions of the tax law no. 91 of 2005.

Years from inception till 2009
Years from inception till 2009 have been inspected and paid .

Year 2010
It was inspected, notified, appealed and referred to the appeal committee.
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Years from 2011 till 2016
These years have been inspected, and the company was notified with the inspection result, the company appealed
on the inspection results, and the appeal is transfsrred to the appeal committee.

Year 2017
Excluded from the inspection sample.

Years from 2018 till 2020
These years have been inspected, and the company was not notified with the inspection results yet.

Payroll taxes
The company withholds the payroll tax and submits it in a monthly basis in the legal time fram accordimg to the

tax law.

Years from inception till 2017
Years from inception till 2017 have been inspected and paid .

Years from 2018 ¢ill 2020
The Company prepared for the inspection till the year 2020, and till now the company didn’t receive any
correspondents or requests for the inspection.

Year 2021
The Company submitted the payroll tax returns in the legal time frame.

Stamp duty tax

The company deducts and pay the the stamp tax in the legal time fram accordimg to the tax law.

Years from inception till 2012
Years from inception till 2012 have been inspected and paid .

Years from 2013 till 2019
The Company prepared for the inspection and analysis are delivered to the inspectors of the tax authority.

Years from 2020 till 2021
Payment has been made and no correspondence or requests for the inspection have been received to date.
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30 Balances resulting from the demerger:
As mentioned in detail in Note 1-C, the following are the balances resulting from the Demerger:

The demered
company (Orascom
Financial Holding)
(in thousands of EGP) December 31,2021
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 140,756
Intangible assets 376,196
Equity accounted investees 1,771,438
Other financial assets 64,564
Total non-current assets 2,352,954
Current assets
Trade receivables 790,465
Other financial assets 53,081
Other assets 9,742
Cash and cash equivalents 336,562
Total current assets 1,189,850
Total assets 3,542,804
Equity and liabilities
Total equity 2,667,866
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 24,907
Total non-current liabilities 24,907
Current liabilities
Borrowings 477,091
Creditors and other credit balances 300,587
Tax liabilities — income tax 19,091
Provisions 53,262
Total current liabilities 850,031
Total liabilities 874,938
Total equity and liabilities 3,542,804
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31

32

Significant events during this financial period and subsequent periods

The impact of the recent spread of the virus (Covid-19) on the economy and global markets continues. And the
consequent negative impact on several aspects, including supplies, manpower, operations, demand for our
products and the company's available liquidity. Accordingly, the company's management has formed a working
group to develop and implement emergency plans to meet these exceptional circumstances, and we are currently
closely following up and continuously evaluating all updates related to the spread of the emerging virus. All
necessary actions are taken to maintain our operations and, most importantly, to protect our employees,
suppliers, Company’s customers and all stakeholders associated with the Group.

In light of our current knowledge and available information, we do not expect the emerging (Covid-19) virus to
have an impact on the Group's ability to continue for the foreseen future.

The General Assembly of Beltone Financial Holding Company (a subsidiary) held on October 27, 2021, and in
accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors of the subsidiary company held on July 13, 2021, and
the second resolution of the Extraordinary General Assembly held on April 4, 2021, which is approved on
May 5, 2021, from the Financial Regulatory Authority, to increase the capital in nominal value by issuing
17,826,105 shares representing 4% of the company’s shares, the value of each share being EGP 2, to be funded
in cash, and these are fully allocated to the reward and incentive system for employees, managers, and executive
board members.

Comparative figures

As mentioned in detail in note no.(1), the parent company of the Group was legally incorporated on
December 10, 2020, accordingly, no comparative figures were presented in the consolidated financial
statements, as the current financial period is the first period for the Group.
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